l Start of

Service Discontinued by
Middlesex County Line
After Half Century

By RAY ZIMMERMAN
Manned by a full crew and carry-
ing only two regular paying pas-
sengers, also a Sunday Times re-

porter and officials of the road, the
last passenger train of the Raritan
River Railroad Company made the
final frip from this city to South
Ambhoy yesterday morning,

A passenger coach and a hig
Baldwin .locomotive made up the
train, last to provide passenger ser-
vice on the 12-mile line, nearly 50
years old.

“Goodbye, no run no wore, good-'|
bye,” called Joseph Lagoda of South
Amboy a3 he lef’ the irain at Pay-
lin.

The only ather paying passenger
was a casual rider who traveled be-
tween Milltown and South" River.
_If A, F. Thompson, of 165 Wash-
ington avenue, Milltown, worked on
Saturday, he would have been on
the train from Milltown to this
city, but he has Saturday off and
took hig last ride Thursday.

Rather inglorious was the ter-

mination of the passenger service
of a once amazing little railroad
which carried as high as 9,000 pas-
sengers a day during the World
War.

Freight Service Goes On

The State Board of Public Utili-
ties Commissioners approved the
[appllcat on of the railroad to dis-
| continue its regular passenger ser-
vice, consisting of a round-trip
daily except Sunday. The usual
freight service will continue.

No protest was made. The few
passengers had paid a total of only
§76 during the past year,
expenses amounted to $3,704.

imost two and a quarter million pas-
| sengers in-addition to the enormous
freight loads.

1 “Yes, the rails were lept hot in
JHmse days,” vTecalleg Hareld Fils-
kov, assistant to his father, Thot-
vald Filskov, as superintendent of
the road. The younger Mr, Filskov
and his son, Harold T. were on
the last passenger train run.

Theodore R. Manduka of South
River,
and Roy-B. Sheppard of Milltown.
the supervising agent,
passengers.

At the throttle of (he lo€omotive
—Number 15— was Barney Novak
of BSayreville, an enginecer for the

and the |

chief of the railroad's police, |

were also |

|

i road since 1911.

2 The last passenger train of the Raritan River Railroad Company began the final run to the South
Amboy yards yesterday morning just after the above photograph was taken at the Sandford street station.

In the inset are, left to right, Theodore R. Manduka, chief of the railread police; William Blood-
gnod, brakemamn; Benjamin Damon, flagman; Melvin Walling, conductor; Harold Filskov, assistant super-
intendent; Barney Novak, engineer, and Martin Nelson, fireman,

LAST PASSEN GER 9 RAIN TRA VILLS
0 VLR RARITAN RIV ER RAILROAD

Wlll Continue Carrying
Frejght; Declined
Since War Days

Novak was accus-
tomed to crowds waiting for the
train hack in the days of war time
husile, he said.
In Train Crew
Martin Nelson of South Amboy
was the fircmen; the brakeman was

| William» Bloodgood of South Am-
boy, and the flagman was Benja-
min Damon of Jamesburg.

l
|

{In 1918 the railroad carried al- |

Collection of the fares was left to
Melvin Walling of Perth Amboy,
the conductor. After the final pas-
senger run, Walling made plans to
work on freight service.

The train moved from the South
Amboy yards . shortly after 6:30
o'clack yesterday morning, picked
up a baggage car and continucc
toward this city. Stops were made
at Bergen Hill, Parlin, South River,
Milltown and New Brunswiclk sta-
tions.

“The round-trip can be made in
about {hc same time as a bus
makes a one-way trip,” cxplained
Mr. Filskov. “We have a fairly di-
rect route. to New Brunswick.”

As the locomotive chugged along,

Continued on FPage Two




... —— _New brmswmk station of Raritan River Railroad, located on $Sandford street.
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By Raritan River Railroad After
Half Century; F relght Goes On
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Mr. Filskov pointed out the exten-
sive clay fields and industrial prop-
erties,

Moving Pictures Taken

Duck’'s Nest Pond, where the
moving picture, “The Juggernaut”,
was made, is near the Hercules
Powder plant., Part of the trestle
protrudes from the pond recently
drained so men could salvage the
remains of a locomotive and cars
which plunged into the water to
create a film thriller.

“The Vitagraph Company was in
Brooklyn, and the railroad was an
ideal spot for them to take pic-
utres,” said Mr, Filskov.

Head-on collisions, runaway cars,
and other exciting events happened
on the railroad. A load of wild ani-
mals was supposed to escape from
a car after one movie “wreck”. A
high fence was built at the rear of
the George Smith fruit farm on
Milltown road to keep them *“in
", But a bear went over the
fence in no time, ambled to a house
and was seen sticking his head out
the second-story window, He was
caught later.

Never Halted Service

The railroad enjoyed the reputa-
tion of never halting -service be-
cause of snow.

Mr, Sheppard recalled when the
lights of South Amboy were kept
burning because kerosene was
transported from the Standard Oil
Company here.

“The roads were blocked ‘by
snow, and if it wasn’t for the Rari-
tan River  Railroad the lights of

' Bouth Amboy would not have been

lighted,” he said.
A round-trip ticket from South

Amboy- to-New Bruhswick cost 60

cents. and rides hetween <Fafiane

atter many years of service.

HAROLD FILSKOV
Assistant Superintendent of
Raritan River Railroad

structed by the line at South Am-|

boy to keep the rolling equipment
in perfect condition. A bad axle
might cause a car loaded with pow-
der to leave the rails, explode and
touch off other explosives to blast
away a large section of the county
-where the accident occurred.

Once a car loaded with black
powder did tip over on top of a
‘switeh containing a burning lam-
tern, Nothing happened, however,

and when the car was lifted and |l

“the “wrecked switch cleared it was

[ |

Here last passenger train

L



. passenger

- transported f.om the Standard O

- Company here.
“The roads were blocked ‘by
- snow, and if it wasn’t for the Rari-
tan River Raijlroad the lights of
“/Bouth Amboy would not have been
lighted,” he said.

A round-trip ticket Imm qouth

were 10 cents.
: When the Michelin Tire Company
¥ was turning out. hundreds of tires
* daily, three car loads of passengers
were transported to. the factory
from this city every day. Otherﬁ
plants along the line were also fur-
nished transportation service for
their employes.

3 No employe will lose his position
_ because of the curtailment of the
service, Mr. Filskov
. stated. The day's work will begin

at 8:30 instead of 6:30, however.

; _ Glamorous History

Gun powder, shells, picnic crowds
and motion picture stars—What an
odd assortment! But all have fig-
ured prominently in the life of the
Raritan River Railroad. . -

The ' Raritan River Railroad,
. which~-runs from New Brunswick
to South Amboy, with all its track-
age within Middlesex County, was
started 50 years ago this month.
And though its equipment and
length is limited this small -rail-
road- concern has played a major
role in the industrial development
of the county.

With nearly a half century to its
credit, for it was founded in 1888
and construction was completed in
1899, the Raritan River Railroad
has been largely instrumental in
the industrial growth of the land
south of the Raritan River, from
which it got its name,

Rise of the sand, clay and brick
business in the South River, Sayre-
ville and Milltown area is trace-
able largely from the opening of
the railroad. From the earlier days
- sand, clay and bricks had been
hauled by tedms of -horses and
mules td the river and then shipped
by water to New ¥York harbor. to
compete with the products of the
pits and plants of the middle Hud-
son valley, Haverstraw and other
famous brickmaking towns.:

Railroad Spurs Progress

But the railroad opened new
{rade routes and soon the pits were
dotted with figures of men work-
ing, digging and tunnelling into the
clay banks. New and enlarged brick
plants were constructed until Mid-
dlesex County could boast of hav-
ing the largest brick plant in the
United States at one time, Its pro-
ducts were eagerly sought' for use
in many of the larger buildings of
New York City and other eastern
coast municipalities.

But sand and clay and bricks are
rather prosaic materials. And while
few can vision romance from the
products of the clay pits the fact
that the Raritan River Railroad
was largely respongsible for the
presence of two powder plants in
Middlesex County grips the imag-
ination.

Gun powder and shells—instru-
ments of war, Millions of tons of
these were hauled over the lines of
the little railroad during the World
War., Before the United States en-
tered the conflict the munitions
were sent from the plants in the
Parlin area to the ports to be sent
to the allies, and later to provide
large and small shells for American
guns and troops in France.

' Tieklish Business!

This munitions business of the
railiroad called for the best of
equipment and the utmost care in
handling the powder and shells.

where the accident occurred.

‘switch containing a burning lan-

! bef.n extinguished w hen the car fell

‘Larger railread shops were con-

v

touch off other explosives to viast
away a large section of the county

Once a car loaded with black
powder .did tip over on top of a

tern. Nothing happened, however,
and_\'.'hen t g»na.x gaa lifted and

%Hz was |
ortunately
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loaded shells was derailed
ped at an angle of about 45

grees. It did not tip over ‘entirely
for workmen, scarcely daring to
breathe lest the car crash and cause
the shells to explode, rammed
heavy timbers under it and with
cranes’'and jacks restored it to the |
tracks. ‘

But the service of the little rail-
road during the World War was
more than just carrying the pro-
ducts of the Parlin powder plants.
Each day it hauled thousands of
workmen to the plants to meet the
demands of belching cannon.

In 1918 a total of 25 daily pas-
senger trips were made during the
week on the railroad, and on fiun-
day 43 passenger trips were made,
when production of the plants was
at its peak. That year the railroad
transferred a total of 2,234,653 pas-
scngers and carried -approximately
1,500,000 tons of freight,

Traffic Drops Off

From that record peak of pass-
enger and freight traffic the rail-
road dwindled steadily in the.hand-
ling of passengers. Buses and
private cars have provided trang-
portation from New Brunswick to
South River, Parlin, and Milltown
since.

‘Last year the Raritan River

hauled only 901 passengers, while
its freight tonnage totalled 666,083.
The freight tonnage for 1937 was
greater than it had been during the
several previous years and the line's
earnings per share of stotk com-
pared favorably with the profits of
the large railway systems of the
nation.
* The growth of the-little raﬂroad
can be traced in great extent to the
love and labor of Thorvald Fils-
kov, who has been connected with
the company since 1898. Since 1916 -
he has been chief engineer and
superintendent and the modern
equipment, trackage and bridges
are monuments to his determina-
tion to fit the railway to provide
service for Middlesex County. For
years Mr. Filskov has had as as-'
sistant superintendent his son,
Harold, who has worked shoulder
to shoulder with his father to im-!
prove equipment and persounecl,
Today the company provides em-
ployment for 90 workers.

When the line was first opened
to New Brunswick the station was
located on Commercial avenue. In
1900 the line was extended to the
present Sandford street terminus.

Now 42 Miles Long

During the past several years
new spur lines have been construct-
ed, until today the Raritan River
Railroad has a total of 4217 miles
of tracks, although its main stem
is only 12 miles long. At present its
rolling stock comsists chiefly of
seven locomotives and 17 freight
cars.

Outside of the service given in
hauling munitions and workers to
the powder plants during the World
War perhaps New Brunswick and
Middlesex County residents think
of the railroad chiefly in connec-
tions with the pienics formally
operated over its tracks.

It wasnh't so many years ago that
picnics were held in Asbury Park




